
Agenda

Standards Committee

Date: Friday 18 December 2015

Time: 9.30 am

Place: St Aldate's Room, Town Hall

For any further information please contact: 
Jennifer Thompson, Committee and Member Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252275
Email: jthompson@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum requirements. Paper copies may be looked at 
the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-
- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Downloaded from our website
- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk

Standards Committee
Membership

Chair

Vice Chair

Councillor Bev Clack
Councillor James Fry
Councillor Gwynneth Royce
Councillor Susanna Pressel
Councillor Mike Rowley
Councillor Gill Sanders
Councillor Dick Wolff

Chris Ballinger Independent Person
Godfrey Cole Independent Person
Jill McCleery Independent Person
Ben Simpson Independent Person

Gordon Roper Blackbird Leys Parish Council

The quorum for this Committee is three, substitutes are permitted.



AGENDA

Pages

1  ELECTION OF CHAIR TO MAY 2016 

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

4  REVIEW OF CODE AND GUIDE TO AVOID BIAS 1 - 8

Purpose of report:  To update the Committee on a review of the Code by 
the Oxfordshire Monitoring Officers group and to present a joint guide on 
avoiding bias in decision making

Recommendation(s): That the report be noted.

5  ASSESSMENT PANEL DECISION NOTICES MARCH 2014 TO 
DECEMBER 2015

9 - 20

Purpose of report: To update the Committee on the work carried out by the 
Council’s Assessment Panel since March 2014.

Recommendation: The Committee is recommended to note the decision 
notices issued by the Council’s Assessment Panel.

6  MEMBER TRAINING IN 2015 AND PROPOSALS FOR 2016 21 - 28

Purpose of report: to update the Committee on training delivered to 
members in 2015 and outline proposals for 2016.

Recommendation: that the Committee notes the delivery of member training 
in 2015 and plans for 2016.

7  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 29 - 30

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting.



DECLARING INTERESTS

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners.



                                                                         

To: Standards Committee

Date: 18th December 2015           

Report of: Head of Law and Governance

Title of Report: Review of Code and explanatory guide in respect of 
avoiding bias

 

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report:  To update the Committee on a review of the Code by the 
Oxfordshire Monitoring Officers group and to present a joint guide on avoiding 
bias in decision making

Recommendation(s): That the report be noted.

Appendix 1 Bias in decision making. How to recognise and avoid it – a 
simple guide for Councils in Oxfordshire.

Introduction

1. The Code of Conduct for Members was adopted by the Authority in 2012. 
The Code was drafted by the Monitoring Officers for the Principal Councils 
in Oxfordshire (‘the County MO’s’) and has been adopted by all of the 
Principal Councils and the vast majority of Parish Councils in the County. 
There is a great deal of merit in having a common Code.

Review of Code

2. The County MO’s keep the Code under review and have recently 
considered whether any changes should be recommended to be made to 
it. The key issue under consideration was whether the Code should be 
revised to include a requirement to declare non-pecuniary interests.

3. The County MO’s concluded not to recommend such a change. Although 
the Localism Act 2011 gave a discretion to Authorities to include a 

1

Agenda Item 4



requirement to disclose non-pecuniary interests, it did not define those 
interests as it did for pecuniary interests and neither did it provide any 
particular sanctions for non-declaration (beyond those limited sanctions 
available to the Committee for breaches of the Code). Non-declarations of 
pecuniary interests, however, is a criminal offence.

4. It was felt, therefore, that to introduce a requirement to register and 
declare non-pecuniary interests would be to extend the reach of the Code 
in circumstances where the sanctions for breach are limited. There is, of 
course, nothing to prevent Members who wish to register and disclose 
such interests from doing so. The Register of Interests form has been 
amended to provide a dedicated space within which such interests may be 
disclosed and Members may declare such interests at meetings. It is 
important to recognise, however, that Parliament has reserved criminal 
liability to a small number of defined pecuniary interests in a deliberate 
move away from a mandatory national Code backed up by effective local 
sanctions. 

5. The County MO’s recognised that there was considerable overlap between 
non-pecuniary interests (or ‘personal interests’ as they were called under 
the previous code) and the common law rules on bias. Consequently, a 
simple guide on the topic has been drafted for all Councillors in 
Oxfordshire. The County MO’s agreed to distribute the guide to Councillors 
and will review the Code again next year.

6. The guide will be sent to all Councillors and I will use it as part of the 
training on ‘conduct’ which will be compulsory for all Members of Council 
following the local elections in May 2016.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name    Jeremy Thomas
Job title   Head of Law and Governance
Service Area / Department     Law and Governance
Tel:  01865 252224  e-mail:  jjthomas@oxford.gov.uk

List of background papers: None

2



BIAS IN DECISION MAKING – 
HOW TO RECOGNISE AND AVOID IT

A SIMPLE GUIDE FOR COUNCILS IN OXFORDSHIRE 

1. Local authorities must act within the law. The law provides that decisions 
which are tainted by bias may be quashed by the Courts. Successful 
challenges to the legality of a decision are costly and time consuming. The 
purpose of this guide is to help Members identify the issue and provide 
advice as to how to respond to it.

2. If, as a Councillor, you have a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) in a 
matter being discussed at a meeting, then this will be presumed bias and 
you should declare your interest and withdraw from the meeting room. You 
should not use your public office to seek information or to influence in any 
way a matter in which you have a DPI. As well as vitiating the decision, you 
may be committing a criminal offence which is punishable by a fine or 
imprisonment and which may also result in you being disqualified from 
office.  

3. A more difficult area is that of apparent bias. This is where you do not have 
a DPI in a particular matter but some other interest you have in the matter 
or your actions in relation to it make your participation in the decision 
untenable. 

The question that a Court would ask itself is whether a fair minded and 
informed observer, having considered the facts, would conclude that there 
was a real possibility that the decision maker was biased. In the local 
government context the decision maker might be a single Councillor but is 
more likely to be a number of Councillors meeting as a Committee, Cabinet 
or as the entire Council. It may only require one Member to be biased for 
the decision to be vitiated, even if the majority on the decision making body 
are not. This rule applies to any decision of an Authority, regardless of its 
nature.

4. The test that the Court applies is an objective one. What would the fair 
minded and informed observer think of it? Not, do you think you are biased 
(which would be a subjective test). The hypothetical fair minded observer is 
assumed to be a reasonable member of the public who is neither 
complacent nor unduly sensitive or suspicious. There are a couple of 
scenarios which are particularly likely to raise issues of apparent bias. 

5. The first scenario concerns predetermination. This is where things you do 
or say in advance of, or at, a meeting suggest that your mind is completely 
made up regardless of any information available to you when the decision 
is actually made. The law says that you must keep an open mind but the 

3



law also recognises that you may hold and express strong views, just so 
long as your mind is not completely closed on an issue. Of course, one 
never knows the mind of another, so this scenario only ever arises when a 
Councillor has chosen to be outspoken on an issue.

Generally speaking, it is advisable to avoid being outspoken on regulatory 
issues where individual rights or interests are being determined.

6. The second scenario concerns conflicts of interest. This is where other 
personal interests that you have ( which do not qualify as DPI’s) e.g. being 
a trustee of a charity or sitting on the management body of a local body or 
living in close proximity to a planning application site or being related to an 
applicant for a permission or licence,  might be perceived as preventing 
you from giving objective consideration to an issue. Whilst such interests 
would not normally prevent you from participating in a decision there may 
be situations where the matter being discussed is so significant for and 
closely connected with the interests of the other body that a fair minded 
and informed observer would think there to be a real possibility of bias. 
This is an area where seeking advice is particularly important. 

7. In both of these scenarios, if you consider that there may be apparent bias 
then you should not participate in the decision and it is advisable to leave 
the meeting room for that item. Whilst there is no requirement to declare 
your ‘interest’ ( as you must do for DPI’s) , you may wish to do so in order 
to signal, clearly,  your non-participation and withdrawal.

8. If you are in any doubt about these scenarios or any others then you 
should always seek the advice of your Monitoring Officer (for Principal 
Councils) or Clerk (for Parish Councils). This guide has been produced by 
the Monitoring Officers of the Oxfordshire Authorities in consultation with 
the Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils and we hope that Councillors 
find it helpful.

December 2015

4



Code of Members Conduct

This code of conduct is adopted pursuant to the council’s duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted members4 of the 
council.

This code applies to you as a member or co-opted member of this council 
when you act in that role and it is your responsibility to comply with the 
provisions of this code.

General obligations

Selflessness

You must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself.

Objectivity

In carrying out public business you must make decisions on merit, including 
when making appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals 
for rewards or benefits.

Accountability

You are accountable for your decisions and actions to the public and must 
submit yourself to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

Openness

You must be as open as possible about your actions and those of your 
council, and must be prepared to give reasons for those actions.

Honesty and Integrity

You must not place yourself in situations where your honest and integrity 
may be questioned, must not behave improperly and must on all occasions 
avoid the appearance of such behaviour.

________________________

4 A ‘co-opted member’ for the purpose of this code is, as defined by the Localism Act section 27 (4) “a 
person who is not a member of the council but who

a)   Is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the council, or
b)   Is a member of, and represents the council, on any joint committee or joint sub- 
committee of the council;

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that committee or
sub-committee”

150 1st June 2015

5



Leadership

You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your 
public post, in particular as characterised by the above requirements, by 
leadership and example in a way that secures or preserves public
confidence.

Specific Obligations

You must treat others with respect and ensure that you are aware of and 
comply with all legal obligations that apply to you as a member of co-opted 
member of the council and act within the law (this includes not participating in 
decisions where a fair minded and informed observer would conclude that there 
is a real possibility of bias);

You must not bully5 any person

You must not do anything that compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of the council.

You must not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you of which you are aware, or ought reasonably to 
be aware, is of a confidential nature except where:

i.        You have the consent of a person authorised to give it;

ii.        You are required by law to do so;

The disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 
professional legal advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose 
the information to any other person, or

The disclosure is:

reasonable and in the public interest;
made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of 
the council

________________________

5 Bullying is defined as offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour which 
attempts to undermine, hurt or humiliate an individual or group. It can have a damaging effect on a 
victim’s confidence, capability and health. Bullying conduct can involve behaving in an abusive or 
threatening way, or making allegations about people in public, in the company of their colleagues, 
through the press or in blogs. It may happen once or be part of a pattern of behaviour, although minor 
isolated incidents are unlikely to be considered bullying.
151                                                                                                  1st June 2015

6



You must not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a results of your
role as a member for your own personal advantage.

When making decisions on behalf of or as part of the council you must have 
regard to any professional advice provided to you by the council’s officers.

When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the council: You 

must act in accordance with the council’s reasonable requirements;

You must make sure that you do not use resources improperly for political 
purposes and do not use them at all for party political purposes.

Registering and Declaring Interests

You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, notify 
the council’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest is yours, 
your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody with whom 
you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners.

You must disclose the interest at any meeting of the council at which you are 
present, where you have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and 
where the matter is not a ‘sensitive interest’.6

Following any disclosure of an interest not on the council’s register or the subject 
of pending notification, you must notify the monitoring officer of the interest within 
28 days beginning with the date of disclosure.

Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any discussion 
of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you have a 
pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State. You 
must withdraw from the room or chamber when the meeting discusses and votes 
on the matter.

_______________________

6 A ‘sensitive interest’ is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of a council 
having an interest, and the nature of the interest being such that the member or co-opted member, and the 
council’s monitoring officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to the member or co-
opted member, or a person connected with the member or co-opted member,
being subject to violence or intimidation.
152 1st June 2015

7



This page is intentionally left blank



To: Standards Committee

Date: 18th December 2015        

Report of: Head of Law and Governance 

Title of Report: Assessment Panel Decision Notices

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To update the Committee on the work carried out by the 
Council’s Assessment Panel 

Recommendation(s): The Committee is recommended to note the decision 
notices issued by the Council’s Assessment Panel 

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Decision Notice dated 12th March 2014, Councillor Jones
Appendix 2 – Decision Notice dated 12th March 2014, Councillor Price
Appendix 3 – Decision Notice dated 10th July 2014, Councillor Malik
Appendix 4 - Decision Notice dated 29th July 2015, Councillor Clarkson

Background

1. The Council has in place “Complaints Handling Arrangements” which set 
out how a member of the public may make a complaint that an elected or 
co-opted Member of this Council or of a Parish Council within our area 
has failed to comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct, and set out 
how the authority will deal with allegations of a failure to comply with the 
authority’s Code of Conduct.

2. The Council has an Assessment Panel made up of the Independent 
Persons appointed for the purpose of considering any complaints 
received about possible breaches, by Members of the Council, of the 
Members Code of Conduct together with the Monitoring Officer. The role 
of the Panel is to consider whether any complaints made merit 
investigation. The decision is recorded in a decision notice which is sent 
to the complainant and the Councillor complained against.

9

Agenda Item 5



Decisions of the Assessment Panel

3. The Assessment Panel has met four times, since the last meeting of 
the Standards Committee, to consider complaints made against four 
different Members of the Oxford City Council. In all of the cases it was 
decided that they did not merit investigation. Copies of the Decision 
Notices issued on behalf of the Assessment Panel are attached to this 
report for information at Appendix 1, 2, 3 and 4. 

Name and contact details of author: Emma Griffiths, Law & Governance, 
Tel: 01865 252208 Email: egriffiths@oxford.gov.uk

Background papers: None

10



SM /   0009952 / 105686  Page 1 
 
 

DECISION NOTICE: 12 March 2014 

 
Meeting of: 

 
Standards Assessment Panel: 
Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer) 
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) 
Jill McCleery (Independent Person) 
Ben Simpson (Independent Person) 
 
Oxford City Council Officers: 
Sarah Claridge (Democratic Services Officer) 
Safia Mukaddam (Trainee Solicitor) 
 

Date of meeting: 7 March 2014 
Complaint against: Councillor Graham Jones 
Complainants: (1) Augustus Mitchell  

(2) Mary Jane Sareva 
Date of Complaint: 30 January 2014 
       

 
Complaint 
 
The Complainants alleged that Councillor Jones had acted inappropriately and abused 
his position as a Councillor at a meeting of the East Oxford Community Association 
(EOCA) by encouraging serious unsubstantiated allegations to be made publicly and 
without warning against community volunteers, interfered in the running of a charity and 
of a not-for-profit incorporated company, abused his position as a co-opted observer on 
EOCA’s Management Committee to encourage individuals to cause harm and distress to 
Trustees and volunteers and disrupted and delayed the constitutional business of the 
EOCA. 
 
Consideration 
 
The Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the ‘Independent 
Persons’ appointed by the City Council to advise on standards complaints at a Standards 
Assessment Panel meeting on 7 March 2014. The purpose of the consideration was to 
determine whether the complaint merited investigation.  
 

11



SM /   0009952 / 105686  Page 2 
 
 

The Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Jones with a copy of the complaint and asked 
Councillor Jones if he would like to provide his own account of events. A written 
response was received from Councillor Jones on 24 February 2014. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered all of the evidence at the 
meeting convened on 7 March 2014, including the Minutes from the EOCA AGM 22 
October 2013, Minutes from EOCA Special Meeting 20 November 2013, Minutes from 
EOCA AGM 4 December 2013, Financial Records from the Old School Bar April-
September 2013, EOCA Constitution, Minutes of CEB Report 12 June 2013, Feedback 
from Councillor Jones to CEB 12 June 2013, Election Results for St Clement’s Ward 
2010 and member/officer accounts of events. 
 
Decision 
 
Having considered all of the written material it was decided that the complaint did not 
merit investigation.  
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons recognised that Councillor Jones was 
not responsible for raising the unsubstantiated allegations against members of the Old 
School Bar at the EOCA AGM on 23 October 2013. It is clear from the evidence above 
that the discussion began following the EOCA’s outgoing Treasurer’s presentation of 
accounts. It was considered that Councillor Jones’ participation on this item was limited 
to advising the vice Chair to allow the Treasurer to finish her submissions. The 
Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons did not find that the reported robust 
discussion surrounding the financial issues of the Old School Bar, the suspension of the 
AGM and the disruptive events of subsequent meetings could be attributed to the 
conduct of Councillor Jones.  
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that Councillor Jones acted 
appropriately in his position both as a Councillor and as a Member of the Association in 
encouraging the EOCA to hear the concerns of its Treasurer. As a member of the EOCA 
and as a Council appointed representative, Councillor Jones was entitled to ask relevant 
questions regarding the administration and governance of the Association.  
 
Furthermore, there is no evidence to demonstrate that Councillor Jones acted in public 
support of the unsubstantiated allegations. It was considered that Councillor Jones was 
entitled to notify members of the press about the AGM as it was a public meeting, unless 
a motion was passed precluding the press from attending. The Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Persons understand that no such motion was proposed. 
 
Lastly, the Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons acknowledge the distinction 
between assertive and bullying behaviour. There is no reason to conclude that Councillor 
Jones’ behaviour constituted bullying or an abuse of his position as a Councillor.  
 
The Panel concluded that no further action is required. 
 

12



SM /   0009951 / 104884  Page 1 
 
 

DECISION NOTICE: 12 March 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of: 

 
Standards Assessment Panel: 
Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer) 
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) 
Jill McCleery (Independent Person) 
Ben Simpson (Independent Person) 
 
Oxford City Council Officers: 
Sarah Claridge (Democratic Services Officer) 
Safia Mukaddam (Trainee Solicitor) 
 

Date of meeting: 7 March 2014 
Complaint against: Councillor Bob Price 
Complainants: (1) Helen Marshall 

(2) Nicky Moeran 
Date of Complaint: 7 February 2014 
       

 
Complaint 
 
It was alleged that Councillor Price firstly, made misleading statements about the Roger 
Dudman Way flats development adjoining Port Meadow in a BBC Radio interview on 17 
January 2014 and secondly, that Councillor Price did not acknowledge emails sent on 21 
and 22 January 2014 asking him to correct what he had said in his interview. Councillor 
Price was conducting the interview in his official capacity as a Member of Oxford City 
Council. The Complainants considered that if Councillor Price had made the alleged 
misleading statements and did not acknowledge the emails, then he may have breached 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
Consideration 
 
The Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaints and consulted with the ‘Independent 
Persons’ appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards complaints, at a 
Standards Assessment Panel meeting on 7 March 2014. The purpose of the 
consideration was to determine whether the complaints merited investigation. The 
Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Price with a copy of the complaints and asked 
Councillor Price if he would like to provide his own account of events. A written response 

13



SM /   0009951 / 104884  Page 2 
 
 

was received from Councillor Price on 20 February 2014 and a supplementary response 
on 24 February 2014. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered all of the evidence at the 
meeting convened on 7 March 2014, including the complaints, written responses 
received from Councillor Price dated 20 February 2014 and 24 February 2014, the BBC 
Radio Oxford transcript dated 17 January 2014, email trail between Toby Porter and 
Councillor Price, a letter to residents regarding Castle Mill, Roger Dudman Way 
development dated 14 February 2014, Castle Mill, Roger Dudman Way Report to West 
Area Planning Committee dated 15 February 2012 and the Castle Mill, Roger Dudman 
Way Consultant’s Report dated December 2013 (The Goodstadt Report).  
 
Decision 
 
Having considered all of the written material it was decided that the complaints did not 
merit formal investigation. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that Councillor Price made 
a factual mistake in the interview conducted on BBC Radio Oxford by citing English 
Heritage, rather than Natural England, as one of the Statutory Consultees involved in the 
statutory consultation process. Councillor Price acknowledged this mistake in an email 
exchange dated 17-21 January 2014 with Mr Toby Porter, a member of the campaign 
group. The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons noted that this factual mistake 
was acknowledged and accepted by Councillor Price 2 days after the mistake was made 
and 19 days before the Standards Complaint was submitted. The Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Persons considered this was a reasonable timeframe in the circumstances. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that Councillor Price’s 
comments in respect of the Environment Agency’s consultation response was factually 
accurate. The Castle Mill, Roger Dudman Way Report to West Area Planning Committee 
dated February 2012 listed the results from the Public Consultation (Statutory Bodies) 
process and cited the EA observations as: “Site falls within Flood Zone 1 and therefore 
able to withdraw any objection; suggest conditions relating to contaminated land”. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons concluded that the Independent 
Review of the planning process in respect of the accommodation at Castle Mill, Roger 
Dudman Way had produced a range of statements which might be cited to both support 
and criticise the extent of the consultation undertaken. In this respect, the Monitoring 
officer and Independent Persons observed that Councillor Price’s statement in relation to 
the consideration of the planning application was not false on the basis that 
recommendations made for improved practice do not necessarily mean that there were 
clear failures identified in these areas. Furthermore, it was considered that Councillor 
Price was entitled, notwithstanding his position as Leader of the Council, to express a 
personal view on the process even if that was contrary to the conclusions of the 
Independent Review. The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that it 
was not the function of the Code to prohibit political discourse. It was also considered 
reasonable for Councillor Price, were he inclined to do so, to publicly defend the actions 
of Officers of the Council. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons found that Councillor Price’s claim in 
relation to the failure to invite the city council to the meeting on 16 January 2014, at 
which the Planning Minister Nick Boles MP and local MP Nicola Blackwood had 
discussed the Castle Mill, Roger Dudman Way issue with local people, was fair 

14



SM /   0009951 / 104884  Page 3 
 
 

comment. The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons concluded that there 
appears to have been a failure by the Ministerial Offices to follow the proper protocol for 
notifying the Council, as a corporate body, of Ministerial visits to the city. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that the complaint in 
relation to Councillor Price not acknowledging or replying to the emails sent to him on 21 
and 22 January 2014 was not justified and actually unfair. The interview with BBC Radio 
Oxford was broadcast on 17 January 2014 and the emails were sent to Councillor Price 
on 21 and 22 January 2014. The email dated 22 January 2014 requested that the matter 
be dealt with through the council’s formal complaints procedure, which was recognised 
by Councillor Price who subsequently referred the matter to city council officers. In 
accordance with the formal complaints procedure, a letter of response was sent to 
residents from Councillor Price on 14 February 2014. The Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Persons concluded that a full and considered response within 23 days of 
receipt, handled through the formal complaints procedure was reasonable and therefore, 
this did not amount to a breach of paragraph 7 of the Code (Honesty and Integrity) or 
paragraph 8 of the Code (Leadership). Whilst it is noted a holding response may have 
been helpful, this was not to be expected in the circumstances. 
 
The Panel concluded that no further action is required. 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



SM /   0010314 / 129231  Page 1 
 
 

DECISION NOTICE: 10 July 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of: 

 
Standards Assessment Panel: 
Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer) 
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) 
Godfrey Cole (Independent Person) 
Ben Simpson (Independent Person) 
 
Oxford City Council Officers: 
Sarah Claridge (Democratic Services Officer) 
Safia Mukaddam (Trainee Solicitor) 
 

Date of meeting: 7 July 2014 
Complaint against: Councillor Sajjad Malik 
Complainant: Matthew Neville 
Date of Complaint:           10 June 2014     

 
 

 
Complaint  
 
It was alleged that a post placed on Councillor Malik’s Facebook page on 9 June 2014 
stating “Today we Elected the first Pakistan Lord Mayor. Congratulations to Cllr Abbasi”, 
was a racist remark. The Complainant considered that Councillor Malik’s comment on the 
social network site breached the Code of Members’ Conduct. 
 
Consideration 
 
The Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the Independent 
Persons appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards complaints, at a 
Standards Assessment Panel meeting on 7 July 2014. The purpose of the consideration 
was to determine whether the complaint merited investigation. The Monitoring Officer 
wrote to Councillor Malik with a copy of the complaint and asked Councillor Malik if he 
would like to provide a response. A written response was received from Councillor Malik 
on 26 June 2014 in the following terms “My comment about the new Lord Mayor reflected 
the speeches made at the Annual Meeting of the City Council in proposing and 
seconding Cllr Abbasi, and I believe that it was an entirely legitimate celebration of the 
fact that the City’s ethnic diversity had finally been reflected in the highest civic office.” 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered the following evidence at 
the meeting convened on 7 July 2014, - the complaint, the written response received 

17



SM /   0010314 / 129231  Page 2 
 
 

from Councillor Malik and the official Oxford City Council video footage of the Mayor 
Making Ceremony on 9 June 2014 (specifically the speeches made by the proposer and 
seconder to elect Councillor Abassi as Lord Mayor and the acceptance speech made by 
him). 
 
Decision 
 
Having considered all of the written and recorded material it was decided that the 
complaint did not merit formal investigation. 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that Councillor Malik was 
acting in his official capacity as a Councillor when he posted the relevant comment on 
Facebook. The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons concluded that only 
paragraph 9 of the Code and in particular the obligation to “act within the law” could 
potentially be engaged but only if the comment posted by Councillor Malik was racist. 
 
In relation to whether the posted remark was racist the Panel concluded that it wasn’t. 
The Panel noted that Councillor Price in his speech at the Mayor making ceremony 
acknowledged Councillor Abassi as the City’s first Pakistani Lord Mayor.   
 
The Panel concluded that the comment was merely factual in nature and that its purpose 
was to celebrate ethnic diversity in Oxford and could not be perceived as anything other 
than supportive of community cohesion in the city. The Panel did not consider that the 
comment had any of the features of a racist comment in that it was not abusive, 
aggressive, prejudicial, discriminatory or antagonistic.  
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that the comment made by 
Councillor Malik on Facebook was not a breach of the Code and that paragraphs 9, 10, 
11 or 12 were not engaged or breached in the circumstances. 
 
The Panel concluded that no further action was required. 
 

18



Standards Complaint – Decision Notice

Meeting of: Standards Assessment Panel
Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer)

 Chris Ballinger (Independent Person)
Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
Ben Simpson (Independent Person)
Oxford City Council Officers
Emma Griffiths (Legal Advisor)
Catherine Phythian (Clerk)

Date of meeting: 29 July 2015
Complaint against: Councillor Mary Clarkson
Complainant: Mrs Madelaina Eftekhari
Date of Complaint:                      4 June 2015 ( received 6th July 2015)

Complaint

The complainant alleges that Councillor Clarkson “used (abused) her position to harass 
and assassinated my character and damaging my professional reputation” and “she 
has abused her position of trust to make false allegation against me, damaging my 
professional landlady. As well as violating my tenant’s right to family life”.

Consideration

The Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the Independent 
Persons  appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards complaints, at a 
Standards Assessment Panel meeting on 29 July 2015. The purpose of the 
consideration was to determine whether the complaint merited investigation.

The Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Clarkson with a copy of the complaint 
and asked Councillor Clarkson if she would like to provide a response. Councillor 
Clarkson provided copies of the email correspondence between herself and 
the complainant and Oxford City Council officers in the HMO Enforcement 
and Planning Enforcement teams.

The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered the following evidence 
at the meeting convened on 29 July 2015, - the complaint and the e mail 
correspondence between Councillor Clarkson and the complainant.  The Monitoring 
Officer and Independent Persons also had regard to the Oxford City Council Members’ 
Code of Conduct in particular the following paragraphs:

19



 You must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned, must not behave improperly and must on all occasions avoid the 
appearance of such behaviour.

 You must not do anything that compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of the council.

 You must treat others with respect and ensure that you are aware of and comply 
with all legal obligations that apply to you as a member of co-opted member of the 
council and act within the law

Decision

Having considered all of the written material the Monitoring Officer and Independent 
Persons were satisfied that the complaint did not merit investigation.

The Monitoring Officer and Independent Persons considered that, on the basis of the 
information provided to them by the complainant and Councillor Mary Clarkson, 
Councillor Clarkson had in her dealings with the complainant been polite; had 
behaved appropriately in referring residents' complaints to the appropriate officers; 
and had not used undue influence to require those officers to investigate those 
complaints.

The Panel concluded that no further action was required in respect of the complaint.

Dated 31st July 2015.

20



To: Standards Committee
Date: 18 December 2015
Report of: Head of Law and Governance
Title of Report: Member Training 

Summary and recommendations

Purpose of report: To update the Committee on training delivered to 
members in 2015 and outline proposals for 2016 

Key decision: N/A
Executive Board 
Member with 
responsibility for 
this area:

Councillor Price, Leader of the Council

Policy Framework: N/A
Corporate Priority: Efficient, Effective Council

Recommendation(s): That Standards Committee resolves to: 

1. Note the delivery of member training in 2015 and plans for 2016 

Appendices

Appendix 1 Feedback analysis

Introduction and background 
1. Planning, Licensing and Code of Conduct training has been a yearly compulsory 

exercise for all Councillors for a number of years.  The response to the framework, 
relevance and quality of this training from members has been variable over that 
time with the prevailing view being that it missed the mark in preparing them for the 
“job” they needed to do and did not enhance skills over time.

2. A review, conducted by Committee and Member Services (CMS), took place during 
the summer/autumn of 2014.  The detailed outcomes of this aren’t included here 
but in brief included :

21

Agenda Item 6



 A framework of compulsory training covering a 4 year term of office would be 
used

 Basic training to be delivered in election years (every other year)

 Non-election years would be used to cover topics aimed at improving skills and 
knowledge from the basic

 The focus and “view” of training would be that of the member 

 The content of the basic modules would be defined by CMS and commissioned 
from the organisation

 The broad content of other modules would be agreed by CMS and 
commissioned from the organisation  

3. This framework and its detailed content was subject to consultation with members 
and in particular a Member Reference Group.  Reactions where positive with few 
(2) negative comments which questioned the whole ethos of the approach.

Outcomes for 2015
4. Compulsory Training dates were agreed by Council in December 2014 as the 19 20 

and 21 May, with “mop up” sessions in June.  2015 is a non-election year and so 
training delivered was aimed at improving skills and knowledge.   All 3 subjects 
(Conduct, Planning and Licensing) were run on each of these days providing 
members with the choice of a morning, afternoon and evening session for all 
subjects. 

5. In developing this training CMS staff agreed the subject matter and direction and 
commissioned “trainers” to work with those service officers delivering the modules 
to support them in making sessions interactive and engaging.

6. Attendance by members is in the table below.  This table also includes the number 
of feedback forms received.  Two members had their allowances reduced, in line 
with the Allowance Scheme, for non-attendance.  Since then one member has had 
their full allowance reinstated by completing the training.

Conduct Planning Licensing
no. of attendees 47 47 16
no. of forms 
received 40 36 15
% of forms 
received 85% 77% 83%
 no. of cllrs yet 
to attend 1 1 0
 % of cllrs yet to 
attend 2% 2% 0%

7. A full analysis of feedback is attached at Appendix 1.  Overall the response from 
members is positive and shows a marked improvement from previous years.  The 
large majority of responses are “very good” and “good” as shown by the table 
below.

22



Very Good and Good Response Scores 
Question Planning

%
Licensing
%

Conduct
%

Average of 
very good & 
good by 
question %

Content of 
training

88 87 100 92

Notice of 
session

93 100 94 96

Dates/times 81 63 91 78

Room facilities 77 100 79 85

Hand-outs 76 75 94 82

Balance of 
presentation

78 63 97 79

Average of 
very good & 
good by 
subject %

82 81 93

8. General comments made by members were also positive reflecting an 
improvement theme.  Looking at the information overall we can be confident that 
the new framework is moving this training in the right direction but we do need to 
make a few adjustments:

 Consider more carefully the rooms we use (there are limitations on CMS ability 
to get the right environment).

 Publish hand-outs in advance electronically.

 Consider how we can provide some follow up with those members who need it.

 Continue to improve on the presentation style/skills for Licensing training.

23



 Continue to improve the presentational style generally.

9. There were a couple of negative comments around timetabling. Dates were 
available for 6 months which is adequate time for members to make arrangements 
to attend.  In addition “mop up” sessions were arranged over an extended period.  
One of the comments suggested that having the training all in the same week was 
difficult and this may present a problem for a few.  This has to be balanced against 
the need to get this training delivered swiftly at the beginning of the municipal year 
to allow members to attend committees and perform their roles.  There is no 
proposal to make any change to the number of sessions available in 2016 but 
these have been agreed over two weeks.  “Mop up” sessions will continue to be 
provided.  

Planning for 2016
10. Council has just agreed training dates for 2016 and CMS staff are in the process of 

commissioning basic training modules in line with the framework mentioned in 
paragraph 2.  The content of these sessions was agreed with members at review.  
The emphasis, focus and aim is to give members the basic skills needed to do their 
job as a member of Council and committees.  For returning members these act as 
refreshers and allow updates and changes to be delivered in a timely and 
informative way. 

11. In addition a programme of non-compulsory training will be offered to run at various 
times throughout the year.  The programme will cover the topics:

 How the Councils budget works

 Scrutiny

 Media training 

 Chairing skills

 How the committee structure works 
 Conclusion
12. We continue to improve the training offer to members and encourage members to 

come forward with their views and suggestions for improvement.

Report author Pat Jones

Job title Committee and Member Services Manager
Service area or department Law and Governance
Telephone 01865 252191 
e-mail phjones@oxford.gov.uk

24



Appendix 1

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 44% 56% 0% 0%

Planning 41% 47% 13% 0%

Licensing 47% 40% 13% 0%

Content of Training

 %

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 55% 39% 3% 3%

Plannning 48% 45% 3% 3%

Licensing 56% 44% 0% 0%

Notice of Training Sessions

%

25



Appendix 1

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 27% 52% 21% 0%

Plannning 29% 48% 23% 0%

Licensing 44% 56% 0% 0%

Rooms and Facilities

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 45% 52% 3% 0%

Planning 39% 39% 18% 3%

Licensing 44% 19% 38% 0%

Balance between powerpoint and chance for discussion

%

26



Appendix 1

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 27% 64% 6% 3%

Plannning 33% 48% 18% 0%

Licensing 0% 63% 38% 0%

Choice of dates/ times

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

Conduct 36% 58% 6% 0%

Plannning 28% 48% 24% 0%

Licensing 6% 69% 25% 0%

Handouts

%

27



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Friday 13 December 2013 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Sanders (Chair), Gotch (Vice-Chair), 
Fry, Pressel and Royce. 
 
 
INDEPENDENT PERSON PRESENT: Chris Ballinger  
 
 
PARISH COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE PRESENT: Gordon Roper (Blackbird 
Leys Parish Council) 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Jeremy Thomas (Head of Law and Governance/ 
Monitoring Officer), Jackie Yates (Executive Director Organisational 
Development and Corporate Services) and Sarah Claridge (Trainee Democratic 
and Electoral Services Officer) 
 
 
22. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2013/14 
 
The Standards Committee elected Councillor Gill Sanders to be the Chair for the 
Council Year 2013/14. 
 
 
23. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2013/14 
 
The Standards Committee elects Councillor Mike Gotch to be the Vice Chair for 
the Council Year 2013/14. 
 
 
24. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Val Smith, Godfrey Cole, 
Jill McCleery and Ben Simpson. 
 
 
25. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
 
26. UPDATE ON ETHICAL STANDARDS ISSUES. 
 
The Monitoring Officer submitted a report (previously circulated and now 
appended) providing an update on various Standards issues. 
 
Ben Simpson had provided feedback on the worthwhileness of the course he 
attended but had also reported that his feedback to the workshop organisers had 
appeared not to have been properly acknowledged.  
 

29

Agenda Item 7



 

The Committee resolved to note the report and asked that the Monitoring Officer 
raise the issue of the missing feedback with the event organiser. 
 
 
27. MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT - 2013/14 REVIEW OF THE 

OXFORDSHIRE CODE. 
 
The Monitoring Officer submitted a report (previously circulated and now 
appended) on the findings of a joint review of the Oxfordshire members’ code of 
conduct. The 5 Monitoring Officers in the county had reviewed the code of 
conduct and had concluded that no amendments to the code were required at 
the present time. The reasoning for that collective conclusion was set out in the 
report. 
 
A new register of interest form would be circulated to enable members to 
voluntarily declare non-pecuniary interests if they wished and further guidance 
would be sent out clarifying members responsibilities to declare securities and 
political party membership.  
 
The Committee queried the reasons why the review group felt no gifts and 
hospitality register should be maintained. However depending on the size and 
frequency of the gift(s) they would become a pecuniary interest and would 
require disclosure under other sections of the code.  
 
 
The Committee resolved to accept the findings of the joint review and 
recommended to Council that no changes to the Oxfordshire Code be made in 
particular that no requirements be introduced to register and declare non-
pecuniary interests. 
 
 
28. MINUTES 
 
The following amendments to be made to the minutes of 14 December 2012: 
Under minute 6 Powers and Duties of Standards Committee 
Paragraph 3 – the word “family” to be changed to “household” 
Paragraph 4 – the sentence to read “She queried why the investigation was 
taking so long out of concern for the human rights of the member investigated” 
 
The Committee resolved to APPROVE the amended minutes of the meeting held 
on 14 December 2012 as a true and accurate record. 
 
The Committee resolved to APPROVE the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
February 2013 as a true and accurate record. 
 
 
29. DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Committee noted the next meeting was scheduled for 14 March 2014. 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 10.00 am 

30


	Agenda
	4 Review of code and guide to avoid bias
	Bias In Decision Making

	5 Assessment Panel Decision Notices March 2014 to December 2015
	Decision notice - Jones
	Standards Assessment Panel:
	Meeting of:
	Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer)
	Chris Ballinger (Independent Person)
	Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
	Ben Simpson (Independent Person)
	Sarah Claridge (Democratic Services Officer)
	Safia Mukaddam (Trainee Solicitor)
	7 March 2014
	Date of meeting:
	Councillor Graham Jones
	Complaint against:
	(1) Augustus Mitchell 
	Complainants:
	(2) Mary Jane Sareva
	30 January 2014
	Date of Complaint:

	Decision notice - Price
	Standards Assessment Panel:
	Meeting of:
	Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer)
	Chris Ballinger (Independent Person)
	Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
	Ben Simpson (Independent Person)
	Sarah Claridge (Democratic Services Officer)
	Safia Mukaddam (Trainee Solicitor)
	7 March 2014
	Date of meeting:
	Councillor Bob Price
	Complaint against:
	(1) Helen Marshall
	Complainants:
	(2) Nicky Moeran
	7 February 2014
	Date of Complaint:

	Decision notice - Malik
	Decsion notice Clarkson

	6 Member Training in 2015 and proposals for 2016
	Member Training report Appendix 1

	7 Minutes of Previous Meeting

